






































EARLY HISTORY OF THE DISTRICT OF ALLYNBROOK

THE ABORIGINALS OF ALLYNBROOK (AND
SURROUNDING DISTRICTS
Extracts from ‘“The Earliest Inhabitants — Aboriginal Tribes of Dungog
Port Stephens and Gresford” by Gordon Bennett

“Dr. McKinlay (distinguished scientist, anthropologist and medico
that made Dungog his home during the best part of the first half of
last century.. reported that, ‘in the early ’thirties . . . . there were about
250 blacks in the Valley of the Williams. Across the range, on the
watershed of the Paterson, was another, and an important branch of
this tribe with whom the natives of the Dungog district intermarried
and Dr. McKinlay and Mr. J. W. Boydell record that these tribes mar-
ried also with those of the tribes on the Gloucester watershed.”

“The Geawe-gal Tribe, whose country was part of the Valley of the
Hunter . . . . also intermarried with those of Maitland . . . . and Pat-
erson River."”

“They were always in dread of war with the Kamilaroi, a fierce
and warlike tribe who followed down the headwaters of the Hunter, from
the Talbragar to Nunmurra Waters and even occasionally made raids
as far as Jerry's Plains.”

BELIEFS: “ In one case recorded by Mr. Boydell, at Gresford, a
blackfellow was under the belief that when passing a grave, the ghost
of the man that had been buried, had magically thrown a pebble at
him, and he considered that he was thereby marked for death.”

BURIAL CUSTOMS: Dr. McKinlay describes, “that, at Gresford,
when the grave, which was very neatly dug with the crudest of imple-
ments, was of sufficient depth, a man got into it and tried it by lying
down at full length. The body, neatly tied up in bark, was carried to it
by friends of the deceased. Before being lowered into the grave, the
medicine man, standing at the head, spoke to the other medicine men
at the foot. All articles of the deceased were buried with him, and
every black present contributed something to the collection. All things
were placed at the dead man’s head, and the grave then filled.”

“Venerables, and men of distinction, were buried with much cere-

E. B. Smith driving his solid-tyred “Jefferey” Truck, transporting
oranges, in 1913. Photo taken at Howard Smith's present property
“Whitfield”.
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mony, but ordinary members of the tribe, and females, were disposed
of in a perfunctory manner."

BLACKSMITH'S SHOP AND UNDERTAKER

Many years ago Mr. Bert Smith, and previously his father, operat-
ed a blacksmith’s shop and undertaking business in Allynbrook.

In plying his trade, “Ye olde village smithy” would heat the steel
by means of a charcoal fire and blower or hand bellows, then fashion
it on the anvil, with hammer and tongs, into a multitude of such articles
as bullock-bows, keys and yoke fittings, rims for wooden wheels, horse-
shoes,  and various parts of all manner of implements and equibment
used about the farm and on the buggies, carts, sulkies and bullock trucks
or waggons used in those bygone days.

[For the undertaking side of the business, Bert used an impressive
horse-drawn hearse which may now be seen, in all its splendour, at the
Glenbawn Museum.

SAWMILLING AT ALLYNEROOK

Sawmilling has always been an interest of the Hancocks of “Orange
Grove', Allynbrook.

The late Mr. T. R. Hancock started a mill at Gresford close to the
old brickyard.

On the day World War I was declared the late Mr. W. Archinal
loaded on to his bullock teams the steam engine from the old flour
mill near Paterson wharf and took it to the late T. R. Hancocks' prop-
erty at Upper Allyn. There, he, and later his two sons, Richard and Alex,
managed a sawmill for many years.

In August, 1948, Alex applied to the Forestry Commission for a
licence to operate a mill at Allynbrook. He began his electrically op-
erated mill in June, 1949. f

The softwoods and hardwoods that are cut and planed for the local
market are brought in on modern timber jinkers. Only once in the his-
tory of this mill was a bullock team used, it was driven by Bruce
Smith, of Allynbrook. ‘

Before World War II the late Norman Joliffe conducted a sawmill
on the Allynbrook Road near the present home of Mrs. A. Dark.

SOAP FACTORY

Many years ago Allynbrook had a soap factory. It was situated
near the second bridge in Ailynbrook.

This factory was operated by an American called King. He married
one of the late George Hancock's daughters (the late T. R. Hancock's
sister).

At first the premises were used as a distillery to extract eucalyptus
oil from the gum leaves. Later he changed to manufacturing soap. He
advertised his soap (YANKEE MAGIC) on every sliprail fence around.

Mr. King later moved to Queensland and some of his family are now
living in the Maryborough district.

DISTRICT VINEYARDS

Allynbrook had two thriving vineyards many years ago, belonging
to Smith and Boydell. The latter family had the first vineyards in
the district, including all the necessary eguipment — presses, casks,
etc., for processing the grapes into wine. Some interesting items of this
equipment may still be seen on the present Boydell property “‘Caergwrle”

Edward B. Smith (Councillor, Wallarobba Shire, 1942-48) planted
some five acres of grapes at the “Wheelabout” (now owned by Mr. Rex
Clements), about 1926, three years after his father's death. In 1947
his brother, Howard, now at “Whitfield”, Allynbrook, took control of
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the black muskatells. Howard reports he obtained £2 ($4.00) per half-
case for the grapes in Newcastle at that time.

In 1952 his brother, (Clifton, ran the wvineyards for another two
years, when Mr. Rex Clements bought the property and converted it
to dairying and vealer-raising.

Vineyards of Howard Smith at “Wheelabout”, 1950,

ST. MARY-ON-ALLYN CHURCH, ALLYNBROOK

This historic old church, standing near the school, was built in 1844
from stone quarried from the bank of the Allyn River opposite and
carted to the site on drays, pulled by bullocks, A Mr. Green was in
charge of building operations and labourers included, among others,
Smiths, Hancocks and Stuckings, still well-known names of this district.

Originally, the building consisted of only the nave and sanctuary,
38’ x 17, the transepts being added about 1904 by Tony Ebbeck.

Mr. Green, the original architect of this church, was also responsible
for, prior to this operation, the construction of a brick barn at “Mt.
Pleasant"; the original Hancock property, and a stone cottage which
still stands on “Whitfield”, owned by Mr. Howard Smith.

Our old church, affectjonally known simply as “St. Mary's”, was
consecrated by the first¥ op of Australia, William Grant Broughton,
on 26th November, 1846. A parish communion was held to mark the
centenary on Sunday, November 25, 1945,

TAXI AND BUS SERVICE: ALLYNBROOK - MAITLAND

In 1913 Messrs. Grey and Hancock originated a bus service between
Allynbrook and Maitland, using a Ford seating some 12-plus persons.

Following World War I, Mr. Jules Barling, who served at that
war, acquired the service which he conducted once weekly. Mr. Barling
then resided in the present house of Mr. Keith Lawrence.

Roland Smith next used a Dodge car on this run.

In 1925 Mr. Charles Grant bought a new Studebaker car and pro-
vided the service for many years, running Mondays and Thursday. This
service by Grant was a separate venture, so when Mr. A, C. Forster
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bought out Roland Smith in 1926, Allynbrook boasted two taxi services.
Forster soon replaced the aged Dodge with a big twin-ignition Nash, and
plied the service Mondays and Wednesday’'s. He lived on the ridge south
of Mr. Bert Smith's present residence. The house was later burnt, but
some remains may still be seen,

It is believed Charlie Grant continued to run the service until it
ceased about 1985, for, by that time, people generally owned their own
private cars.

BIRD’'S INN; ALSO KNOWN AS “BIRD'S AUSTRALIAN WINES”

The original owner of this wine saloon was Mr. Towns, at which
time the building was some distance back from the road. Succeeding
owners were McCann, Ned Bird and Pat Bird in that order.

In 1901 the present building was erected in front of the old one,
and consisted of four bedrooms, a long bar and three verandahs. The
front fence facing the road was then the picturesque old “‘Cockatoo”
style. Complete with all plumbing the total cost of the establishment was
some £240 ($408).

Mr. Kevin, Inspector of Schools, then in this area, used to board
there occasionally, as did other school inspectors and stone masons.
While there Mr. Kevin became ill and after much persuasion consented
eventually to having a doctor, who immediately insisted on an ambu-
lance trip to hospital, but on arrival of the ambulance Kevin refused
to leave. After several days of great agony he passed away.
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